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Intro from Greg referring to Glenn: We have him listed here as Assistant Administrator, actually he’s been upgraded promoted, demoted, I’m not sure….Congratulations or condolences, he is an Associate Administrator now of the Agency for small business.  We’ll be up here to take questions, Raju, if you would, if you have a question can you just raise your hand or whatever and we’ll bring you a mic so everyone can hear your question and then we’ll try to respond to them.  

I don’t think I introduced Wayne Frazier.  Wayne Frazier is from the Office of Safety Mission Assurance.  He works directly with Bryan O’Connor, my boss.  He is kind of an interface for me to Bryan.  Bryan is a very busy man so I can’t get to him so Wayne has to put up with me when I can’t talk directly to Bryan.
Question 1:  I understand that there is an RFI coming out.  (paraphrase)  Do you all have a timeframe in mind?  When do you envision the RFP coming out?
Answer from Rosa:   We are expecting the RFI to come out in a couple of weeks then we will do an evaluation, from there on I would not envision the RFP coming out any earlier than 3 months from now. 

Greg:  That actually brings up a good point.  Our current IV&V contract was slated to expire on May 10th.  That will be extended maybe up to 12 months so we can go thru this new procurement process.
Glenn: Trying to figure out why everybody is so quiet.


Attendee in audience: This is not a question but I just want to thank Mr. Glenn Delgado, Mr. David Grove and Ms. Rosa Acevedo for coming to our industry day today to hear from the small business group and large business also.  So thank you very much for coming and of course thank Greg and Mr. Wayne Frazier.  Thank you very much, and Laura of course.  Thank you so much everyone.

Glenn:  We are very anxious to hear from the small businesses.  I received a lot of letters but I hear no noise now.  While you guys are thinking of your questions what I will tell you though is that they have basically abandoned the old strategy of putting out a small business set aside and we are coming out with a new RFI.  This is your opportunity to be heard.  Now when we put out the RFI, make sure you answer the questions in the RFI, do not just send in a capability statement, because this is what will determine the new strategy.  I can’t tell you how many letters I’ve gotten in my inbox about this procurement when the strategy has changed.  We seriously look at and evaluate the input from all the industry, both large and small.  And if we have enough responses from small businesses, we do look at that and take it very seriously but you have to make sure you address each and all of the elements that are asked for in the RFI and if you can’t do the whole thing end to end, make sure you specify what pieces that you can do because if it by any chance happens to go full and open, that is what dictates the subcontracting plan and that’s what we look at.  I would strongly encourage if you can’t do the whole thing, look for teaming partners or JV’s , joint ventures, where you guys can bid in as a whole unit from the small business community.  So these are the things you make sure you do.  Make sure you answer the RFI, answer in a timely fashion, don’t send it in late, ok, we will seriously look at those and evaluate.  Dave is the analyst for Goddard.  He will be looking at them very carefully and working with Rosa, they will have to put something together that we will have to sign off on.  We know the amount of interest that’s out there so let’s see it in the RFI responses.  I stay above it basically, Dave will handle it but if there are any issues where I will need to step in on, I will step in. 
 Dave: This is a good networking opportunity here today.  I see lots of business cards being exchanged, find out who the players are, find out where the strengths and weaknesses are and where you fit in with all the people in this room.
Question 2: I was just curious to see if the participant list from today/attendee list be distributed?

Answer from Laura: Our intention is to distribute the slides you have seen today and the attendees list and answers to your questions will be posted with the requirements.
Question 3: I’m Randy Hefner.  I’m with Galaxy Global.  I started working at the NASA IV&V facility back in 1994.  I spent 10 years with L-3.  I am pleased with what I am seeing here today.  I know as I look at over the cast of characters that are here today, there are many faces that I do recognize that used to work for large business.  They can bring significant value to NASA as an IV&V services provider.  Given that, I guess I will follow up with a question.
When you revisit this, are you going to also consider the value that small business might bring to the table in terms of IV&V services as opposed to what has previously been done with small businesses to the large extent; include IV&V services as actually a portion of the scope of work?
Answer from Glenn: They are rewriting the statement of work and reviewing it now.
Answer from Rosa: Most of you know that I am also a strategist.  Part of our strategy is actually to redo the scope of work and the statement of work, that’s why it’s going to take us awhile.  We are considering everything, all the input you have given us in the past.  We are considering experiences we have had here in the past.  So, be assured that is always present in our mind.  That’s why you see the presence you are seeing today.  It’s very important for us for you to understand that we are present here at IVV also.  The fact that we are in DC or Greenbelt, it doesn’t take us but 3 hours to get here and Laura has access to us all the time.
Glenn: It took me 4 hours to get here!  (laughter)
 Greg Blaney:  I would like to follow up to Randy’s question.  I’ve been here a long time. I’ve known, heard and seen what small business can bring to the table.  I know they can support and perform IV&V services, I will tell you that the previous procurement strategy in the small business set aside did not enhance that in my mind. The small business set aside did not have IV&V services in it.  So we are hoping based on the RFI responses that we see, we can make that better. 
Question 4: Greg from Key Logic Systems.  On behalf of the small and large business community, I appreciate you all coming out today.  Randy led into the question and I think you answered it.  Do you see everything on the table in the RFI across the IVV organization?
 Answer Glenn:  Correct, the key to that is to make sure you answer the questions because a lot of the times people just send in a capability brief and do not specifically address the RFI.  You need to specifically address the RFI, there are going to be certain things they are asking for, answer it, the mail. Don’t do it in generalizations go down into specifics.

Glenn: This guy here has been waiting patiently for 3 times already.
Question 5: Thank you very much.  My name is Charlton Sampson of ITCA aka TCBA.  My question pertains to flushing out the strategy, I’ve noticed recently that federal agencies and states, they actually procure the subcontractors for various large engagements such as this.  Would that be part of your strategy or would you leave it entirely up to the big guys to decide who they are going to sub or team with?
Answer from Rosa: I can tell you that the NASA policy is we do not direct subcontractors, however in saying that I will also tell you that this team of people actually tries to enhance communications amongst you and do a lot of networking for you and tell you even published companies are capable of doing work.  If a prime contractor, Lockheed, Northrop Grumman or whatever comes to me I will publish and give a list of the people that we have found to be capable of doing the work because we do what subcontracting opportunities to go to small businesses and that is why we do such high goals and focus, refocus the company, but we do not direct them to go to a company.

Charlton Sampson:  No, my question was not directing, it was actually procuring and that is the strategy I have been noticing recently, where the agency would actually procure a small business subcontractor.
Answer from Glenn: That is not our intent, and I actually talked to Chris Scolese about that yesterday, day before yesterday actually.  He was talking about that in some other areas reaching hearing actually.  Right now that is not the NASA way.  They are looking at that in other areas but not in this contract at all.

Question 7: My name is Michael Hieber and I represent MRI Technologies.  You talked about the RFI and you talked about answering the mail and possibly forming joint ventures.  In the time frame of the RFI coming out and a response probably due in 2 weeks, small businesses are only going to have so many resources they can put into trying to have discussions with other small businesses.  Going through the cost of actually setting up a joint venture and that could be cost prohibitive if there aren’t enough responses to make a small business.  You confused me a little bit when you talked about the joint venture.
 Answer from Glenn: Let’s see the best way to explain this.  The RFI will be out in a couple weeks or a couple days hopefully whenever we get the final chop on it.  It will probably be out for a 2 week period, probably, and then after that you have at least 3 months or so before the RFP comes out itself.  I’m looking more for when you are answering the RFI’s, be specific as much as you can for your particular company but in the meantime between now and when the RFP is released (cause that is when we will find out if we are going to do a small business set aside, full or open, or whatever we are going to do) you should start looking and networking with these people here that compliment you.  Cause even if we go full and open, there is a chance if you and your JV put together a good team you guys can be that small business.  That is one good thing you are not still not excluded from bidding.  You do not necessarily have to look for subcontracting opportunities you can look to take the whole thing.  In that 3 month period from now and the RFP coming out, you can still probably get together with some of your cohorts here to build some synergy to block the whole thing.  That’s more of what we are looking at. 
Question 8: Hi folks.  Dan Palensky with Metters.  Do you see any OCI issues with the local center IT contracts if we were to win this thing? 
Rosa: Can you repeat the second part of the question.  You were kind of fading out.  I heard OCI.

Dan Palensky: Yeah, I’m concerned there might be OCI issues with local center IT contracts that we are also pursuing.

Answer from Rosa: We have consistently in the last 6 years, been very concerned about OCI issues.  The agency right now is very concerned about OCI issues.  I hate to do this but I’m going to give you my standard answer.  On any procurement, that is first and foremost, we will be looking to see if there is potential of OCI and if there is what we are going to do to protect the Agency and that contract and the contract’s laws. 

 Answer Dave: Just for the people that may not know, OCI is Organizational Conflict of Interest.  People that may have knowledge that may affect their ability to collect data on contracts, we’ll watch and make sure it’s as level of a playing field as possible.  
Glenn: So they don’t have any inside knowledge where they can bid better because they are working on a project that ducktails into another proposal.
Question 9: Hi I’m Randy Simpson with IBM.  Could you share with us potentially the contract type?  And do you expect any performance based or is this all CPAF?  Can you share this with us?
Answer from Glenn: To be determined is the best answer to that.  We don’t want to step into that. 
Greg: Did you hear the answer?

 Glenn: TBD.  It all depends on what comes out.   
Randy Simpson: Would you expect to query the industry with that type of question in the RFI?

Answer from Rosa: No, I don’t think so.

Question 10: Morning.  I’m Shana from Mori Associates.  The RFI’s that we respond to, are you going to look at it as a team and between the team members to see if the team members cover all the areas for the requirements or is it going to be that only that small businesses are responding to this RFI is going to be evaluating it?  (Question not clear)
Answer from Rosa: Actually the RFI will have a lot of technical capabilities.  We will have a team of people reviewing it.  It will be mostly Laura and her technical people here.
 Glenn: Are you asking this on a past performance issue or just on the capability of getting it done?


Lady asking question: I guess both of them because they go hand in hand.  If you have the capability, for example if you have all the capabilities but your past performance is not deep enough or long enough, would it be considered as a team  to have a key member as subcontractor or JV responding to the RFI?

Glenn: What I think I hear you saying…. basically if you submit your RFI as a teaming arrangement, we will look at it as that team. And if you have it covered on all basis for the technical stuff that would be great, but remember in order for us to still set it aside we have to look at the rule of 2 which is more like the rule of 4 or 5, that we have small businesses, that all of them can do all of it to be set aside.  Now for the past performance side of that, that’s strictly on the contracting side of the house.  I won’t answer that one.  But it all depends on how the team is put together and who has the experience.  If you have a team and we do end up setting it aside we’ll still have make sure who is doing the 51% of the work and making sure that the subcontracting rules are not violated, that whoever is doing the core or most of the work or the 51% basically is doing the core competency work and not just the admin work and their subs are doing the key work. We look at all that kind of stuff.
Question 11: Is there going to be any communication between the RFI and the RFP - if there is going to be a small business set aside or is it going to be a full and open?
Answer from Rosa: Once we make the determination, we will start posting.  From the point of time we start preparing documentation that is official documentation; we will continue to post in our library.  We will not go into a black hole.  We do like to do that.  We will not do it purposefully.  Now there might be breaks of a month or so where nothing is going on because we are working on something else, but we will continuously post.
Answer from Laura: We will not respond directly to your RFI saying whether you are capable or not. 
Question 12: Good Morning.  Thank you for being here.  I am Amy Beaudry from Azimuth.  In regards to the RFI will it be the IV&V experience not just with NASA but across every agency? 

Answer from Glenn: What I think she is asking is does the IVV experience have to be strictly NASA or can you use other federal agencies where you count IV&V as your experience.  That is a contracting issue.

Greg Blaney: In my mind, the answer is yes.  There is NASA domain knowledge, there’s IV&V, there is V&V, there’s software development, so it ranges.  It doesn’t have to be specifically for NASA for an IV&V experience but there are other areas that probably will be specific to NASA.
Question 13: Will you make ability to submit technical capability that may be sensitive, classified or of that nature a way to be separately submitted?

Answer from Greg:  I believe you will see in the RFI that we will do our best to protect proprietary information under the rules of FOIA’s and all those other regulations but yes. 
Glenn comment: I think the question she is asking is, how can she identify IV&V from black programs.
Greg: Yeah don’t send anything in classified.

Comment from audience: I am Dan McCaugherty with Athena Sciences Corporation and I would just like to make a point of clarification.  To the best of my knowledge the second largest IV&V award coming from NASA Goddard was a small business award.  Early it was mentioned that the IV&V services award, this was before the IV&V facility was really established and conducting their own procurements, approx. 1993 before Fairmont even started.  So the point being NASA and Goddard in particular, has a rich history of very large small business IV&V awards. 
Glenn:  As Goddard reminds us all the time they carry the Agency in small business awards.

Question 14: Would you advise small businesses then, even if they are part of a team, to also respond to the RFI individually?
Answer from Glenn: That’s hard to answer.  My honest gut response is do what you think is the right thing to do. If you are part of a team, do it as part of a team.  I don’t know how your team members would take it if you submit individually at the same time.  Do what you want to do.  That’s the best I can say.  I would not venture to tell you which way to go.

Question 15: I want to follow up based on his question.  The RFI that you are going to put is a single RFI where everyone is going to respond, it is not a small business RFI and a large business RFI correct? 
Answer from Glenn: Correct

Lady in audience: So if the small businesses wouldn’t respond as their selves, then how would you guys be able to make that determination that there should be or how are you going to base that the portion should be small business or not?  That is what I’m kind of struggling with.
Answer from Glenn:  Leading your team you identify that your team as a small business. 
Lady in audience:  No, I understand.  My point is I think small businesses should respond so you would know those small business capabilities if they have that capability. I think that may be what he was asking, I don’t know.  That’s what I was asking.
Glenn: The whole point in me sitting here is that small business better respond.  I mean, you guys responded and killed my in box when the procurement went the other way. 

Dave: If you are a small business and you don’t have a partner but think you can do a piece of this, still respond because some of  this analysis is…. Once the decision is made to go full and open, if the decision is made to go full and open, there is still an analysis done on how much of a subcontracting goal should be set.  So we look at the experience out there, the interest of small business, the types of small businesses, and that’s how we set the goals to it.  So still respond even if you are only going to do a piece of it.  That helps us.  It helps you.
 Glenn: We will still publish the interested parties list so you can look and see who else is interested.  If you see some synergy between yourselves, build on the synergy.

Greg: I think there is another advantage too that Tina brought up as submitting from a small business perspective.  This is just one contract.  The Agency is changing.  There may be other aspects and we have in the past and we’ve always looked at ways to carve out specific direct small business contracts.  So if we don’t know what your capabilities are, we don’t know what we can and cannot allocate or pick up via small business capability in the future.  I think it is a good idea.
Question 16: My name is Allison Bertrand of Southwest Research.  You guys had spoken a lot about the changes to the organization and changes to the contract.  I wanted to know if you want to make any comments about whether you feel there will be specific changes to the IV&V procedures that will be performed.

Answer from Greg: Yes and no.  If you were familiar with the IV&V program we had some very specific processes/procedures/methodologies 2 or 3 years ago.  We started transitioning those a little bit over to a product line approach, a more modeling approach.  Now we are transitioning back, morphing back to somewhere in the middle.  We are not throwing out the things we have learned over the last 3 years, but we are modifying a little bit and going back and picking up some of our old practices, processes and methodologies.  NASA cannot stay in the old way of doing business. We have to continue to improve.  You have probably seen in the news, if Constellation goes away and if we give our astronauts to commercial vendors, we have to look at new ways of doing IV&V and software mission assurance, safety mission assurance on these programs because they are not NASA.  We can’t sit there throughout the development life cycle.  So yes, absolutely, our processes, methodologies and tools will have to change.
Long pause:

Glenn: Ok let’s break the silence here.  Who’s next?  I’ll give you a couple more seconds of silence.
Question 17: You all announced you are setting up a new organization, Software Assurance Tools. Do anticipate any RFPs coming out for that or unsolicited proposals?
Answer from Greg: Depends on RFI responses.  We do currently have a small business tools lab contract that is different from our IT contract that has our infrastructure.  We have a tools lab contract that actually maintains a specific tools lab and we have IV&Vers that actually use the tools.  So there are 3 aspects of the tools lab or tools contract.  The tools lab contract that is currently in place is not really part of this.  The RFP that comes out will be based on your RFI responses.
Long pause:

Glenn:  Do I get to start driving back home? Questions?  It’s not often that you get all of us sitting here at one time so speak now. 
Question 18: What is the likely value when it does come out?  Ceiling value?

Answer from Greg: He asked for a value.  From a total package based on the President’s budget, which is not approved, who knows whether it will be approved, whether it will be under CR or not….

Panel:  Greg you might not want to go there, not approved, No value

Greg: No value?

Glenn: Something that is not approved, the Administrator frowns upon its discussion. 

Greg: Ok, so yeah don’t know

Rosa: Those of you that are watching us, you immediately saw the contracts policy side go “What?  NO!”

Greg: Let me point out one thing.  For you that aren’t familiar, this is not the IV&V facility by the way.  This used to be the ISR building.  If you go down over the hill to the salmon color building (it is not pink) with the NASA emblem on the front, that’s the NASA IV&V facility. And we are trying to procure a couple floors of office space in the building next to us because we are growing and do anticipate more IV&V personnel and we are trying to bring them back to where we are working close together.  So that is the IV&V facility down over the hill, not here. 
Question 19: Perhaps Greg can share with us.  What is your current expenditure on IV&V services between TASC, L-3, small businesses and other IV&V services contracts?
Glenn: That one you can answer.  (Laughter)
Answer from Greg:  What is it 17? 17 million a year?  Depends on our budget ….somewhere around 17-20 million per year. 

Comment: I want to follow up to a statement I made earlier.  I know you mentioned the rule of 2, 3, 4, 5 whatever the case may be.  I also mentioned as I look out over the crowd I recognize a lot of faces that used to work for both small and large business and they have extensive IV&V expertise.  A lot of times individuals are inhibited by the beasts so to say in large business and they go off on a different path to pursue professional growth for themselves.  And I see a lot of innovative creative thinkers herein the room from small business and I just want to reemphasize that it would be a loss to NASA if the value of these resources were not fully realized in the IV&V services and the talent that they could bring to the table.
Glenn: Just make sure it comes clear through the RFI.  I can’t say that enough.  That’s what all the decisions will be based on.  Greg and the head of procurement at Goddard spent 2 hours in my office one day about 2 weeks ago and just talked about the whole thing and we are going to start from scratch.  It’s going to be based off the results from the RFI.  I‘ve said it 9 times.  I’ll say it for the 10th time.  Whatever we get back from the RFI’s will determine the strategy for this procurement.  So do it, do it right.

Greg: I will respond to your comment Randy from just a personal philosophy.  My allegiance is to the Agency and to do the best IV&V software mission assurance work we can do for the Agency.  I’ve been with them a long time and I believe in them and that’s my goal, is to make IV&V the best that it can be to perform those services.  In order to do that, we need the best people that we can get.  I don’t know how to do that.  That’s why that table is there.  I know what I want, and I believe they know what I want and they are going to try and make it happen for me.  So that’s why they are stressing, that’s why we’ve had this meeting, we want the best and everyone is capable here, and, they’ll figure out how to make it happen.

Applause

